
 

Request for Proposals 

Audit Services 
 

The City of Summerside is seeking proposals for the provision of Audit Services and ancillary 
accounting matters. Sealed proposals clearly marked “Audit Services” will be received up until 
12:59:59 PM (AST), Monday, September 30, 2019, at Summerside City Hall, Financial 
Services 1st Floor, 275 Fitzroy Street, Summerside, PEI, C1N 1H9. Bidding instructions and 
additional information can be picked up at City Hall. 

 
Kristen Dunsford, CPA, CGA 
Manager of Financial Services 
902-432-9184



NOT A TENDER CALL 

This Request for Proposals (RFP) is not a tender call, and the submission of any response to this 
RFP does not create a tender process. This RFP is not an invitation for an offer to contract, and it 
is not an offer to contract made by the City. By this RFP, the City reserves to itself the absolute 
and unfettered discretion to invite submissions, consider and analyze submissions, select short- 
listed Proponents or attempt to negotiate an agreement with the Successful Proponent, if any, as 
the City considers desirable. Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, the City reserves 
the right to: 

 
a) reject, consider or short-list any submission whether or not it contains all information required by 

this RFP;  
 

b) require clarification where a submission is unclear;  
 

c) reject any or all submissions without any obligation, or any compensation or reimbursement, to any 
Respondent, intended Proponent, or any other person associated with this RFP process;  

 
d) all or any proposals not necessarily accepted, as the acceptance remains within the exclusive 

discretion of the City; 
 

e) disqualify or reject any submission without discussion with the submitting party;  
 

f) reject any or all submissions that the City considers are not in its best interests;  

 
 

NO OBLIGATION TO PROCEED 

Though the City fully intends at this time to proceed with the awarding of Audit Services as 
contemplated herein, the City is under no obligation to do so. The receipt by the City of any 
information (including any submissions, ideas, plans, drawings, models or other materials 
communicated or exhibited by any intended Proponent, or on its behalf) shall not impose any 
obligations on the City. There is no guarantee by the City, its officers, employees or agents, that 
the process initiated by the issuance of this RFP will continue, or that this RFP process or any 
RFP process will result in a contract with the City for the provision of Audit Services. 

 
 

CITY’S DECISION-MAKING POWER 

The City has the power to make any decision, or to exercise any contractual right or remedy, 
contemplated in this RFP at its own absolute and unfettered discretion, and no public law duty, 
whether arising from the principles of procedural fairness or the rules of natural justice, applies 
to the City. 



City of Summerside 

RFP – Audit Services 
 

BACKGROUND 

 

The following information is intended to assist you in preparing your proposal. Please ensure 
that your proposal contains a covering letter, responses to the Audit Firm Questionnaire, and 
pricing information which is to be submitted in a separate sealed envelope. 

 

Three copies of your sealed proposal, clearly marked “Proposal for Audit Services”, will be 
received up until 12:59:59 PM (AST), Monday, September 30, 2019, at Summerside City Hall, 
Financial Services 1st Floor, 275 Fitzroy Street, Summerside, PEI, C1N 1H9. 

 

Bidders are required to submit their cost of services section of this proposal in a separate sealed 
envelope. The rating of proposals will be completed by the review committee on all other items, 
before opening the cost envelope. From the proposals submitted, firms may be requested to make 
an oral presentation directly to the review committee and/or to the finance committee of council. 

 
The firm submitting the successful proposal, as approved by Council, will be appointed the 
Auditor for the City for a period of one (1) year. Provided that the performance and the fees 
continue to be satisfactory, the successful firm may be reappointed annually in each of the 
following four (4) years. The successful firm will commence duties as Auditor for the City of 
Summerside for the fiscal year beginning April 1, 2019. 

 
 
Key Dates: 
 

 
Item Date 

 
Availability of RFP 

 

 
August 27, 2019 

 
Proposal Submission Due 

 

 
September 30, 2019 at 12:59:59PM (AST) 

 
Short List Selected 

 

 
October 4, 2019 

 
Recommendation to Council 

 

 
October 21, 2019 (Tentative) 

 
Notification of RFP Award 

 

 
October 22, 2019 (normally day after council meeting) 
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    General Information 

 

Summerside is a small city of about 15,000. In addition to its general fund, the City operates water and 
sewer utilities, an electric utility and an electro thermal storage program. As with most municipalities, 
each of these funds has an operating and capital component.  
 
The City of Summerside is legislated by the Municipal Government Act 
(https://www.princeedwardisland.ca/sites/default/files/legislation/m-12.1-municipal_government_act.pdf 
and is governed by a mayor and eight councillors.  The administration of the city is under the direction of 
the Chief Administrative Officer.  There are eight directors for the following departments:  Community 
Services, Economic Development, Financial Services, Fire Services, Human Resources and Legal Affairs, 
Municipal Services, Police Services and Technical Services  
 
Microsoft Dynamics GP is the accounting software currently used and utility billing is performed using 
Cogsdale CSM. 
 
Recent financial statements and budgets are available through the Financial Services section on the City’s 
web site (www.summerside.ca). 

 
AUDIT FIRM QUESTIONAIRE 

 

In order to assist the City Council in making their selection of an Auditor, you are asked to provide 
complete but concise answers to the following questions which have been grouped into five categories: 

 

1. Qualifications of Firm 
2. Extent of Municipal Experience 
3. Cost of Service 
4. Insurance 
5. Other Comments 

 
1. Qualifications of Firm: 

 

• Are you or your firm registered auditors in the Province of Prince Edward Island? 
 

• Where is your office located? 
 

• What changeover of audit staff can be expected over the next 5 years? 
 

• Will the audit partner in charge of this audit be visiting our premises regularly? 
 

• What is the size of the audit staff, management consulting staff and support staff of 
your local office? 

 

• We require that the annual audit be completed by June 15th of each year and the 
presentation of the financial statements to council by June 30th. How will you ensure 
that audit deadlines are met? 
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2. Extent of Municipal Experience: 

 

• What is the extent of your staff's municipal auditing experience? 
 

• What is your familiarity with PSAB, and how do you feel PSAB requirements 
may impact the City of Summerside in the near future? 

 

• How will you ensure that all new staff are familiar with the City's operations? 
 

• Name other municipal units which your firm audits. 
 

• Are major audit decisions the responsibility of your local office, or do you have a 
regional or national office which participates actively in decision making? 

 

• What is the stature of the City of Summerside's audit within the overall 
organization of your firm? 

 

• What other resources does your firm have to draw upon? 
 

3. Cost of Service (this section should be placed in a separate envelope marked “Cost 

of Service” as it will be opened after the other sections are rated): 

 

• What will your annual audit fee be? 
 

• What would your fee be for the preparation of the City’s financial statements (if 
not prepared internally)? 

 

• What is the hourly charge-out rate for each of the employees to be assigned to the 
City of Summerside audit? 

 

• How will the above rates be adjusted in each of the next five years of the audit 
relationship? 

 

• Will the City be billed for any "start-up cost" relating to the initial audit, if 
applicable? 

 

• What is your firm's policy and rates for billing extra and special work? 
 

• How many hours do you anticipate your firm would assign to the City audit? 
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4. Insurance: 

 

• The City will require its accounting firm to carry "single occurrence liability 
insurance" to the value of $5,000,000. Does your firm currently have such 
coverage? 

 

• If not, would your firm be willing to secure such insurance? 
 

5. Other Comments: 

 

• Explain how you would propose to use City staff, if at all, to assist you during the 
audit, and indicate the approximate time required. 

 

• Detail your transition plan. 
 

• What access does your firm have to "computer specialists"? 
 

• Will the audit team include individuals with management consulting experience? 
Does your firm have a management consulting services branch? 

 

• What management consulting services have you recently performed for 
municipalities? 

 

• Please provide any other brief comments that you wish the City to consider in 
selecting an audit firm. 
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Cost of Services (this section should be placed in a separate envelope marked “Cost of 
Service” as it will be opened after the other sections are rated): 

Fiscal Year Cost (not including HST) 

April 1, 2019 to March 31, 2020 

April 1, 2020 to March 31, 2021 

April 1, 2021 to March 31, 2022 

April 1, 2022 to March 31, 2023 

April 1, 2023 to March 31, 2024 

Total of 5 Years 

 Information Sheet: 

Proponent Name: 

Address: 

Telephone Number: 

Email Address: 

Website: 

Contact Person: 

Title: 

Telephone Number: 

Name (please print): 

Authorized Signature: 

Date (yyyy-mm-dd): 

The City reserves the right to reject any or all submissions.  The lowest or any submission will 

not necessarily be accepted. 
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Evaluation of Proposals 
 

Proposals will be evaluated by a review committee comprised of staff and/or Council. Each 
member of the review committee will rate each proposal according to this procedure and the 
weighting table included. 

 
The evaluation procedure is as follows: 

 
1. Open the first envelopes, evaluate and score each proposal as per the Rating Table Report. 

The three top rated proposals (excluding price), will be selected for the next stage of the 
review. 

 
2. A proposal rated as poor on any one of the categories is unacceptable regardless of its final 

score. 
 

3. The second stage will consist of opening the second envelopes and evaluating the “Cost of 
Services” portion of the Proposal. The cost of service and the qualitative scores will be given 
equal weighting in the final evaluation. 

 
4. Selection among proposals having identical overall scores will be based on the lowest price. 

 
5. Meet with the best priced consultant to obtain additional information, clarification and 

agreement, if necessary. 
 

6. If agreement cannot be reached, interview the next best overall score. 
 

7. Make final recommendation for acceptance. 
 

8. Upon approval by City Council, notify all consultants that submitted proposals. 
 

9. In the event that no proposals are found to be acceptable or an agreement cannot be reached 
with any firm, then the review committee must re-evaluate this request for proposal. 
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Evaluation of Criteria and Rating Table Report 

 

Criteria Rating % Actual Score 

Local Autonomy and Decision Making Ability 
- expertise of local staff 
- management located in Summerside 

10 
 

Qualifications of Firm 
- staff size and support 
- staff changeover 
- experience 
- ownership 

30 
 

Extent of Audit Experience 
- audit experience 
- municipal experience/PSAB 
- utility accounting experience 

(electric/water/sewer) 
- availability of senior staff 
- able to meet legislated deadlines 
- conflict of interest 

40 
 

Other Factors 
- expected level of audit effort (number of hours) 
- transition process 
- fees stay in Summerside / PEI 
- insurance 

20 
 

Total Value 100 
 

Score Received 
  

 

The following guide to rating (based on a maximum of 10) will be used: 
 

• Poor (1-3) 

• Fair (4-6) 

• Good (7-8) 

• Excellent (9-10) 

 
Inquiries 

 

To the extent appropriate, practical or feasible, the City will respond to questions concerning this 
RFP. All inquiries are to be submitted via email or in writing to Kristen Dunsford, CPA,CGA, 
Manager of Financial Services 275 Fitzroy Street, Summerside, PE, C1N 1H9, email: 
kristen.dunsford@city.summerside.pe.ca. The City reserves the right to circulate questions and 
responses to other prospective bidders, or make no response at all. Firms submitting inquiries are 
advised to not rely on any verbal advice/instruction, and only to rely on written instructions from 
the City. 
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